
               
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

December 6, 2011 - 7:30 p.m. 
 

City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating 
lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.  Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.  An 
informational packet is available for public inspection which is posted immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers, which can be 
accessed Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. excluding holidays. 

 
 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 2. PLEDGE 
 
 3. ROLL CALL:  
    Mayor: Lyle Achziger 
          Mayor Pro-Tem:  John Morris 
                Council:  Laura Brown 
      Fred Burmont 
      April Neibauer 
       Jay Schaffer 
       Matthew Wells 
 
 4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (public comment on items not on agenda):   

The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to address the City Council, this is the time set on 
the agenda for you to do so.  When you are recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.  
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your 
comments and suggestions under advisement and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

      
 5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 6. CONSENT AGENDA:   

The Consent Agenda contains items that can be decided without discussion.  Any Councilmember may request removal of any item they do not 
want to consider without discussion or wish to vote no on, without jeopardizing the approval of other items on the consent agenda.  Items 
removed will be placed under New Business in the order they appear on the agenda (this should be done prior to the motion to approve the 
agenda).  
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 15, 2011 
B. Ordinance No. 531-11 - Eliminating Section 3.24 - Museum Fund and Section 3.28 - Senior Citizen Special 

Revenue Fund of the Evans Municipal Code (2nd Rd) 
C. Resolution No. 32-2011 – Establishing 2011 Property Tax Levy 

  
7. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Resolution No. 33-2011 – Adjustment of Water Rates and System Development Charges for the Evans 
Water Utility Enterprise 

B. Resolution No. 34-2011 – Adjustment of Sewer Rates and System Development Charges for the Evans 
Wastewater Utility Enterprise 

 
 8. REPORTS 
  A. City Manager 
  B. City Attorney 
 
 9. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION(general comments): 

Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures on addressing City 
Council. 

    
 10. ADJOURNMENT 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 



December

6 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

20 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

23 City Offices Closed - Christmas Holiday

26 City Offices Closed - Christmas Holiday

January

2 City Offices Closed - New Years Day Holiday

3 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

17 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

19 5:00 PM Evans Chamber BAH - Contemporary Cook - 
5750 W. 10th Street

February

2 6:30 PM Candidate Orientation session

3 First day to pickup nomination petition for Municipal 
Election

7 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

17 Last day to file nomination petition

21 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

March

1 5:30 PM Evans to host MPO meeting

April

3 City Municipal Election

9 6:30 PM Newly Elected and Current Council Orientation 
Session

December 2011 - November  2012

Yearly Planner

Dec 2011

S M T W T F S

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Jan 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

Feb 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29

Mar 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Apr 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30

May 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

Jun 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Jul 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

Aug 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

Sep 2012

S M T W T F S

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

Oct 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

Nov 2012

S M T W T F S

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   December 6, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.:   6.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes  
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk Staff 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 
 MINUTES 
 EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
 Regular Meeting 
 November 15, 2011 - 7:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Achziger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Present:  Mayor Achziger, Mayor Pro Tem Morris, Councilmembers Brown, Burmont, Neibauer, 

Schaffer and Wells 
 
PRESENTATION: 
Earl Smith, Director of Public Works, presented a clock to Robert Mayes and thanked him for 25 
years of commitment and dedication to the City of Evans Public Works Department.  Mayor 
Achziger also thanked Mr. Mayes for his years of service to the City and presented him with a clock 
as a token of appreciation.  
 
PROCLAMATION: 
Mayor Achziger proclaimed November 18, 2011, as Weld County Adoption Day. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
Jerry Long, resident, proposed that a resolution be considered to add the words In God We Trust in 
the Council Chambers.  Mr. Long believes the nation needs to get back to the founding principles of 
our country.  He believes adding the words In God We Trust in the Council Chambers would help 
unify the City of Evans. 
 
Skip Carlson, resident, also requested a resolution be considered to add the words In God We Trust 
in the Council Chambers. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
An Executive Session was added to the agenda to discuss contract negotiations. 
 
Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve the agenda 
as amended. Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 1, 2011 
B. Ordinance No. 529-11 – Amends Exhibit A of Chapter 12.20 and Sections 15.50.100 and 

15.52.045 of the Evans Municipal Code concerning Adjustments of Street, Fire and Park Impact 
Fees (2nd Rd) 

C. Ordinance No. 530-2011 – 3rd Quarter Budget Revision (2nd Rd) 
 

Councilmember Wells made motion, seconded by Councilmember Schaffer to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 



Evans City Council 
November 15, 2011 
Page 2 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Ordinance No. 531-11  - Eliminating Section 3024 – Museum Fund and Section 3.28 – Senior  

Citizen Special Revenue Fund of Evans Municipal Code (1st Rd) 
 
Jessica Gonifas, Director of Finance, reported the following: 
 
The City municipal code outlines which accounting funds are authorized.  The City’s Financial 
Policies recommend that “The City will minimize the number of funds…” (III.A.1.). This 
increases the efficiency within the financial management system.  
 
The code currently includes two funds (Sections 3.24 Museum Fund & Section 3.28 Senior 
Citizen Special Revenue Fund) which have outlived the necessity of being separate from the 
General Fund and have not been in use for several years.  
 
Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Morris to approve 
Ordinance No. 531-11 on first reading.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
B.  Resolution No. 31-2011 – Authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement 

for the transfer of Emergency Services between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire Protection 
District 

 
Aden Hogan Jr., City Manager, reported the following: 
 
This intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire 
Protection District is the last step in the creation of the Evans Fire Protection District. It transfers 
all emergency services as defined in the Service Plan as the services currently provided by the 
Evans Fire Rescue Department of the City of Evans from the City to the new District. There are 
no changes to this IGA from that approved by City Council as part of the Service Plan adopted 
by Ordinance No. 509-11 on April 4, 2011. 
 
The service plan requires that the City and District enter into this IGA within 30 days of the 
organization of the District. The Weld County District Court issued an Order Declaring 
Organization of the Evans Fire Protection and Certifying the Initial Board of Directors on 
November 4, 2011 after a successful organizational election on November 1. This order was 
recorded with the Weld County Clerk and Recorder on November 9, 2011 and the District was 
legally organized on that date. The Fire District Board of Directors is scheduled to sign this IGA 
on November 28, 2011. 
 
Councilmember Wells made motion, seconded by Councilmember Schaffer to adopt Resolution 
No. 30-2011.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 
 

 



Evans City Council 
November 15, 2011 
Page 3 
 
REPORTS: 
The City Manager had nothing new to report. 
 
The City Attorney had nothing new to report. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:  
There was no audience participation. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Mayor Pro Tem Morris made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to adjourn to an 
Executive Session for the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to CRS 24-
6-402(4)(e).  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 8:06 p.m. 
 
City Council came out of Executive Session at 8:39 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Achziger adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. 
 
 
               
          Shannon Metcalf 
          Customer Service Unit 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.: 6.B  

 
 SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 531-11 - Eliminating Section 3.24 - Museum Fund and 

Section 3.28 - Senior Citizen Special Revenue Fund of the Evans Municipal 
Code (2nd Rd) 

 
PRESENTED BY: Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The City municipal code outlines which accounting funds are authorized.  The City’s Financial 
Policies recommend that “The City will minimize the number of funds…” (III.A.1.). This increases 
the efficiency within the financial management system.  
 
The code currently includes two funds (Sections 3.24 Museum Fund & 3.28 Senior Citizen Special 
Revenue Fund) which have outlived the necessity of being separate from the General Fund and have 
not been in use for several years.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending the elimination of the funds in order to follow the Financial Policies and 
increase the efficiency within the financial management system.    
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 

I move to adopt Ordinance No. 531-11 on second reading. 
  



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 531-11 

(SECOND READING) 
 
ELIMINATING SECTION 3.24, MUSEUM FUND, AND SECTION 3.28, SENIOR 
CITIZEN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND, OF THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 WHEREAS, when the City of Evans adopted its new financial policies, one of the goals was 
to increase efficiency in accounting methods; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the primary goal to meet the policy is to reduce the number of funds necessary 
for improved efficiency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the funds specified under Section 3.24, Museum Fund, and Section 3.28, Senior 
Citizen Special Revenue Fund, are no longer used as a result; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been recommended by the Finance Department that these funds be 
completely eliminated from the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  That Section 3.24, Museum Fund and Section 3.28, Senior Citizen Special 
Revenue Fund, are hereby repealed from the Evans Municipal Code. 

 
Section 2.   Publication and Effective Date.   This Ordinance, after its passage on final 

reading, shall be numbered, recorded, published, and posted as required by the City Charter and the 
adoption, posting, and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and City 
Clerk, and by the Certificate of Publication.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final 
passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 
this 15th  day of  November , 2011. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
_____________________    By:________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 6th  day of  December, 2011. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
_____________________    By:________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor 



  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
 
DATE:   December 6, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.:  6.C 

   
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 32-2011 - Establishing the 2011 Property Tax Levy 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This resolution establishes the 2011 property tax levy and authorizes the Mayor’s signature on 
the statement certifying the levy to the Weld County Commissioners. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Evans 2010 tax levy must be certified to the County Commissioners by December 
15, 2011.  The 2011 mill levy will remain at 13.536 mills.  The County’s preliminary calculation 
of Evans’ assessed valuation for taxable year 2011 is $116,105,960. The final calculation of 
assessed valuation will be provided to the City by the 10th of December.  The 2012 budget 
estimates property tax revenues of $1,524,462 (net of collection fees). 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 33-2011. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to adopt Resolution No. 33-2011.” 
 “I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 33-2011.” 
  
 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 32-2011  
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 2011 PROPERTY TAX LEVY AND 
DIRECTING THE CERTIFICATION OF THE SAME TO THE WELD 
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Evans, Colorado, as well as the laws of the State of 
Colorado, require the City Council to establish the property tax levy so as to fix the rate of 
taxation by the City of Evans upon property subject to the ad valorem property tax; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 4, 2011, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 26-2011 
adopting the 2012 Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 18, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 526-11 
appropriating the revenues based upon the 2012 Budget.  Estimated property tax revenues for the 
2012 Budget are $1,524,462; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 3, 1992, the People of the State of Colorado approved 
Amendment 1 which added Article X, Section 20 to the State Constitution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article X, Section 20(4) generally prohibits any mill levy above that for a 
prior year without prior voter approval. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 
 Section 1. The property tax levy to be applied to the valuation for assessment of property 
subject to taxation by the City of Evans, Colorado shall remain the same at 13.536 mills. 
 
 Section 2.  The Mayor and City Treasurer are hereby authorized to sign a statement 
certifying to the Board of County Commissioners and the County Assessor that the property tax 
levy for 2011 has been established at 13.536 mills. 
 
 PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Evans on this 6th   day of     December     , 2011. 
 
         CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
         By:      
                    Mayor 
  
ATTEST: 
 
     
       City Clerk 



 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   December 6, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.:  7.A 

 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 33-2011 – Adjustment of Water Rates and System 

Development Charges for the Evans Water Utility Enterprise 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Earl H. Smith, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Customarily the City adjusts various fees on an annual basis for inflation. The current rate of 
inflation used to adjust other fees for 2012 is 1.87%. Therefore the attached draft water rate 
resolution reflects an inflationary adjustment in the usage rate for water and the system 
development fees by an inflationary amount. It is also anticipated the City of Greeley will pass 
along to Evans a rate increase in the amount of $0.22/1000g which is proposed to be passed on 
to our customers and is reflected in the attached draft resolution as well. Monthly delivery 
charges assessed by Greeley will not be adjusted in 2012. 
 
In addition to the rate adjustment described above, it is proposed the monthly delivery charge 
be increased by $2.00/month up to $14.50 for a ¾” water tap and by proportionate amounts for 
larger tap sizes. This is the third step in a multi-year effort to increase the availability charge to 
the level it supports our efforts to provide adequate major maintenance funding. The monthly 
delivery charge is proposed to increase based upon the recommendations of the City’s Finance 
Committee and as supported in the past by the Water and Sewer Board and City Council. The 
proposed adjustment to the monthly delivery charge will be as provided in the attached 
resolution and will go into effect beginning in January 2012. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The monthly delivery charge for a typical single family home is proposed to increase from 
$12.50/month to $14.50/month. The usage fee is proposed to increase from $2.90/1000g for the 
first tier of usage to $3.17/1000g.  System development charges, or tap fees, are proposed to 
increase by the amount of inflation (1.87%).   
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Water and Sewer Board recommends approval and staff concurs.  
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
* I move to adopt Resolution No. 33-2011. 
* I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No.33-2011.  
   



  CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-2011 
 

 
SETTING WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT AND WATER SERVICE 
CHARGES IN THE CITY OF EVANS WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized to set water rates and system development fees; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Evans has completed a comprehensive water rate study and ten year 
financial plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board has reviewed and approved said comprehensive water 
rate study and ten year financial plan which includes the cost of operation, repairs and replacements, 
capital improvements, future plant expansion, and water conservation needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans has recommended that it would be in the best 
interest of the City to modify the existing water rate structure; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, recommends adoption of the modified rate 
structure. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Pursuant to Section 13.04.080 of the Evans Municipal Code, the following rates and charges shall 
apply beginning with the January 2011 utility billing cycle: 

 
Monthly Availability Charge: 

 A. The City of Evans shall charge a Monthly Availability Charge for making water service 
available to each water tap.  Such fee shall be charged regardless of actual water usage, and 
regardless of partial vacancy within a multi-family unit. 

 
1. Each single family residential account within the City of Evans shall be charged a 

Monthly Availability Charge, regardless of water tap size as provided in Table 1. 
 
2. Each single family residential account outside the City of Evans shall be charged a 

Monthly Availability Charge, regardless of water tap size as provided in Table 1. 
 

3. Each multi-family residential account inside the City of Evans shall be charged a 
Monthly Availability Charge per dwelling unit, regardless of actual tap size as 
provided in Table 1. 

 
4. Each multi-family residential account outside the City of Evans shall be charged a 

Monthly Availability Charge per dwelling unit, regardless of actual tap size as 
provided in Table 1. 

 



 2 33-2011 

Table 1 

Residential 
Monthly Availability Charge 

INSIDE  
CITY 

OUTSIDE 
CITY 

Single Family $14.50  $15.50 

Multi-family (Per Unit) $14.50  $15.50 

 
5. Manufactured Home Communities served by a common tap shall be charged a 

Monthly Availability Charge based upon what would be the required water tap 
size for the number of dwelling units served as provided in Table 2. 

 
6. Commercial, and all other user classifications, shall be charged a Monthly 

Availability Charge based on the water tap size as provided in Table 2. 
 

Table 2 

Commercial and Manufactured Home Communities 

Tap 
Size 

EMS 
Ratio 

(1) 

Max 
Units 

Allowed 

Monthly Availability 
Charge 

INSIDE 
CITY 

OUTSIDE 
CITY 

3/4" 1.0 2 $14.50  $   15.50  
1" 1.4 4 $20.30  $   21.70  

1 1/2" 1.8 10 $26.10  $   27.90  
2" 2.9 25 $42.05  $   44.95  
3" 11.0 45 $159.50  $ 170.50  
4" 14.0 90 $203.00  $ 217.00  
6" 21.0 170 $304.50  $ 325.50  
8" 29.0 300 $420.50  $ 449.50  

10" 37.0 500 $536.50  $ 573.50  
12" 45.0 825 $652.50  $ 697.50  

(1) Equivalent Meter and Service Ratio is based upon 
AWWA M1; Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges 

 
Treated Water Usage Charge – Residential Accounts: 
A.   The following water rates are fixed, imposed, and levied upon any owner, lessee, or user of 

water from the city.  These fees shall be part of the water revenues of the city:  
 
 
 

 



 3 33-2011 

Single Family Residential and Duplex 
Accounts Treated Water Usage Charges 

Without Non-potable Availability 
 

Multi-Family Residential Accounts >2 units 
Treated Water Usage Charges Without Non-

potable Availability 

Usage (gallons) per 
Dwelling Unit 

Per 1,000 
Gallons  Usage (gallons) per 

Dwelling Unit 
Per 1,000 
Gallons 

1,000 to 16,000 $3.17  1,000 to 16,000 $3.17 

16,001 to 22,000 $5.04  16,001 to 22,000 $5.04 

over 22,001 $8.14  over 22,001 $8.14 

         
         

Single Family Residential and Duplex 
Accounts Treated Water Usage Charges 

With Non-potable Availability  

Multi-Family Residential Accounts > 2 units 
 Treated Water Usage Charges With Non-

potable Availability 

Usage (gallons) per 
Dwelling Unit 

Per 1,000 
Gallons  

Usage (gallons) per 
Dwelling Unit 

Per 1,000 
Gallons 

1,000 to 16,000 $3.17  1,000 to 16,000 $3.17 

over 16,001 $8.14  over 16,001 $8.14 

 
Treated Water Usage Charge – Commercial Accounts: 
A.   The following water rates are fixed, imposed and levied upon any owner, lessee or user of 

water from the city.  These fees shall be part of the water revenues of the city:  
 

Commercial Accounts Treated Water 
Usage Charge 

Usage (gallons) Per 1,000 
Gallons 

over 1,000 $3.89 

 
Non-potable Water Usage Charge – Residential and Commercial: 
A.  The following non-potable water rates are fixed, imposed, and levied upon any owner, lessee 

or user of non-potable water (other than Ditch water paid for by Ditch Fees) from the city.  These fees 
shall be part of the water revenues of the city:  
 

Non-potable Water Usage Charge 

Usage (gallons) Per 1,000 
Gallons 

over 1,000 $2.10 

 
 



 4 33-2011 

  B.  In the event treated water is used to supply non-potable irrigation systems, the usage 
charge shall be as follows.  These fees shall be part of the water revenues of the city:  
 
 

Single Family Residential and Duplex 
Accounts Non-potable Water Usage 

Charges When Supplied with Treated 
Water 

 
Multi-Family Residential Accounts >2 units 
Non-potable Water Usage Charges When 

Supplied with Treated Water 

Usage (gallons) per 
Dwelling Unit 

Per 1,000 
Gallons  Usage (gallons) per 

Dwelling Unit 
Per 1,000 
Gallons 

1,000 to 16,000 $3.17  1,000 To 16,000 $3.17 

16,001 to 22,000 $5.04  16,001 To 22,000 $5.04 

over 22,001 $8.14  Over 22,001 $8.14 

 
Other Water Sales : 

  A.  Users of water from designated City water sources shall be assessed a permit fee which shall 
be valid for a period of time as established by the utilities director.  The user shall also be required to pay 
a per thousand gallon water usage charge.  Fees and charges associated with the use of City fire hydrants 
shall be charged as follows. 
 

Meter Installation $8.50 

Meter Removal $8.50 

Meter Rental $11.00/day  

Meter Deposit $1100.00 

Permit $28.00 

Usage $ 8.14 per 1,000 gallons 
treated water 

Usage $2.10 per 1,000 gallons 
untreated water 

  
  B.  Users of water for new construction shall be assessed a $30.00 fee to cover costs of water 
during the time of construction. This shall authorize use of water for only the building for which the 
permit is issued.  The utilities director shall determine at what point the need for construction water is no 
longer authorized by this fee. 
 

System Development Charge: 
 A. The following water system development charges are fixed, imposed, and levied upon new 
and existing developments, subdivisions and projects for treated water taps with or without the 
availability of non-potable irrigation as provided in Table 3, Columns A through D. 
 

 



 

 5 33-2011 

 Table 3 

Tap 
Size 

SFRE 
Ratio 

(2) 

Inside City Outside City 
System Development Charges System Development Charges 

(A) 
Without Non-

potable 
Availability 

(B) 
With Non-

potable 
Availability 

(C) 
Without Non-potable 

Availability 

(D) 
With Non-potable 

Availability 

3/4" 1.00  $12,277.78  $7,366.67  $18,416.67  $11,050.01  

1" 1.67  $20,503.89  $12,302.34  $30,755.84  $18,453.51  

1 1/2" 3.33  $40,885.01  $24,531.01  $61,327.51  $36,796.52  

2" 5.33  $65,440.57  $39,264.35  $98,160.85  $58,896.53  

3" 10.67  $131,003.91  $78,602.37  $196,505.87  $117,903.55  

4" 16.67  $204,670.59  $122,802.39  $307,005.89  $184,203.58  

6" 33.33  $409,218.41  $245,531.11  $613,827.61  $368,296.67  

8" 53.33  $654,774.01  $392,864.51  $982,161.01  $589,296.77  

10" 126.67  $1,555,226.39  $933,136.09  $2,332,839.59  $1,399,704.13  

12" 166.67  $2,046,337.59  $1,227,802.89  $3,069,506.39  $1,841,704.33  

 
 (2) SFRE Ratio - Single Family Residential Equivalent Ratio, based on AWWA M22; Sizing 
Water Service Lines & Meters 
 
C. The diameter of the water tap for a water line installed for fire-fighting purposes only, 

shall not be considered in computing system development fees as established above.  However, the 
Water and Sewer Board may recommend a fee based upon the size of water tap based upon special 
circumstances. The recommended fee for this purpose requires City Council approval.  All water 
lines installed for fire-fighting purposes shall have a usage detector device installed.  
  D. The utilities director may recognize a situation or circumstance regarding system 
development fees that warrants special attention and consideration.  When this occurs, the Water and 
Sewer Board may be requested to review the issue and make recommendation for resolve.  The 
recommended system development fee for this purpose requires City Council approval.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Evans on this    6th   day of   December, 2011. 
 

 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
 By                                                   

               Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     
 City Clerk 



 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   December 6, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.:  7.B 

 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 34-2011 – Adjustment of Sewer Rates and System 

Development Charges for the Evans Wastewater Utility Enterprise 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Earl H. Smith, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The attached Resolution proposes an adjustment to the monthly sewer rates and system 
development charges (SDC’s) for the Evans Wastewater Utility Enterprise. The monthly user 
fees and development charges are proposed to be increased by the amount of inflation as has 
been done with other fees. The current rate of inflation used in this adjustment is 1.87%.  
Analysis of the fund also shows that there is a gap between what the city collects in revenue and 
the minimum requirements to keep the system running.  In order to close this gap the analysis 
shows that an additional 6.82% increase to the base rates is needed.  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The monthly user fee for a typical single family home is proposed to increase from $9.89/month 
to $10.75/month. The system development charge, or tap fee, is proposed to increase from 
$3,636 to $3,704 for inside City customers and from $5,454 to $5,556 for outside City 
customers.   
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Water and Sewer Board recommends adoption of the Resolution, staff concurs.  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
* I move to adopt Resolution No. 34-2011. 
* I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 34-2011.  
   



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 34-2011  
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING SEWER RATES AND SYSTEM 
DEVELOPMENT FEES FOR USE OF THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM OF 
THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized to set, by Resolution, rates for the use of the 

Evans Sanitary Sewer System; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board has reviewed the costs of operation, repairs and 
replacements, capital improvements, and future plant expansion; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board found that existing usage rates and System 
Development Fees are not sufficient to cover current costs of necessary capital improvements or 
system maintenance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board has recommended increases to the usage rates and 
Sewer System Development fees. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  Sewer Usage Rates.     
 

A.   Effective January 1, 2012, the sewer rates for the use of the City of Evans Sanitary Sewer 
shall be as follows: 
 

Class I.  Residential Sanitary Sewer Rates.   Single family units, multi-family units, and 
mobile home parks not served by Evans Water and connected on one sewer service tap shall be 
assessed $10.75 per residential living unit per month. 
 

Class II.  Commercial Rates.  Applicable to schools, churches, warehouses, offices, and 
manufactured home communities served by a common tap, shall be assessed $4.68 per water tap per 
month plus $1.10 per 1,000 gallons of water used per month.  If the commercial customer waters a 
lawn of 18,000 square feet or more using metered water, the sewer charge to that customer shall be 
calculated on the current year’s first quarter water usage. 
 

Class III.  Commercial Rates.  Applicable to beauty shops, barber shops, bars/taverns, 
service stations (excluding wash racks), vehicle and equipment repair facilities, and motels without 
dining facilities shall be assessed $4.68 per water tap per month plus $1.16 per 1,000 gallons of 
water used per month.  If the commercial customer owns and waters a lawn of 18,000 square feet or 
more using metered water, the sewer charge to that customer shall be calculated on the current year’s 
first quarter water usage. 



 
 2 Reso. 34-2011 

Class IV. Commercial Rates.   Applicable to restaurants, motels/hotels with dining facilities, 
office buildings with dining facilities, grocery stores with food processing, Laundromats (excluding 
dry cleaning) carwashes and truck washes shall be assessed $4.68 per water tap per month plus $2.29 
per 1,000 gallons of water used per month.  If the commercial customer owns and waters a lawn of 
18,000 square feet or more using metered water, the sewer charge to that customer shall be 
calculated on the current year’s first quarter water usage. 
 

Class V.   Commercial Rates.   Any other facility or commercial use not listed or with 
special and unique types of discharge shall have their rates set by the Water and Sewer Board with 
final approval by the City Council. 
 

Class VI. Non-Resident Rates.  The rates for service to properties outside the Evans City 
Limits shall be 150% of the appropriate rate provided for Class I through IV. 
 

A. Multiple User Tap 
 

Any tap providing multiple usage shall be billed for all usage at the rate applicable to the 
highest class of user. 
 

Section 2. Sewer System Development Fees 
 

A. Effective January 1, 2012, Sewer System Development Fees are hereby fixed, 
imposed, and levied upon any owner, lessee or user of the sanitary sewer within the limits of the City 
of Evans except where more than one residential living unit will be served by the tap then sub-
section B of this section shall apply.  The fees imposed shall be computed by reference to the 
diameter of the water tap used to provide water service. 

 
 
 

 

B. Where more than one residential living unit is proposed to be served by a single tap, 
the system development fee inside City limits shall be based on the number of living units multiplied 
by $2,593 or the system development fee as provided in Subsection A for this section, whichever is 
greater. 

Water Meter Inside City Sewer Outside City Sewer 
Tap Size Equivalent System Development Fee System Development Fee 

3/4" 1 $3,704.50  $5,556.75  
1" 1.67 $6,186.52  $9,279.77  

1 1/2" 3.33 $12,335.99  $18,503.98  
2" 5.33 $19,744.99  $29,617.48  
3" 10.67 $39,527.02  $59,290.52  
4" 16.67 $61,754.02  $92,631.02  
6" 33.33 $123,470.99  $185,206.48  
8" 53.33 $197,560.99  $296,341.48  

10" 126.67 $469,249.02  $703,873.52  
12" 166.67 $617,429.02  $926,143.52  

    
(2) SFRE Ratio - Single Family Residential Equivalent Ratio, based on AWWA M22; Sizing 
Water Service Lines & Meters 



 
 3 Reso. 34-2011 

Where more than one residential living unit is proposed to be served by a single tap the 
system development fee outside City limits shall be based on the number of living units multiplied 
by $3,890 or the system development fee as provided in Subsection A for this section, whichever is 
greater. 
 

C. If the primary or only purpose of a water tap is to provide protection from fire, the 
diameter of that tap shall not be considered in fixing the system development fee for sanitary sewer 
service, but rather the fee shall be set by reference to the diameter of any separate water tap which is 
used to provide regular domestic water service to the parcel, or if no such separate tap exists, then by 
reference to the diameter that the water tap would have been had there been no over-sizing because 
of fire protection requirements. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Evans on this     6th     day of December, 2011. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 By ______________________________ 
      Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________                                         

City Clerk 


	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	December 6 Agenda
	Calendar
	Approval of Minutes
	November 15 Minutes

	Staff Report - Eliminate Funds
	Ordinance No. 531-11 - Elminate Funds

	Staff Report Property Tax Levy
	Resolution No. 32-2011 – 2011 Property Tax Levy


	NEW BUSINESS
	Staff Report - Water Rates
	Resolution No. 33-2011 - Water Rates

	Staff Report - Sewer Rates
	Resolution No. 34-2011 - Sewer Rates


	REPORTS
	City Manager
	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT



